
The Mission of YCLBA is to deter blight and to return vacant property to productive status using a unified, 

predictable, and transparent process, thereby revitalizing neighborhoods and strengthening the tax base of the 

entire County of York including the City of York and all of its boroughs and townships 

YORK COUNTY 

LAND BANK AUTHORITY  
 
  

 

Thursday, November 20, 2025 
Hybrid Zoom/In-person Meeting 

144 Roosevelt Avenue York, PA 17401 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/538759070  
 

 

Members: Thomas Englerth II, Michael Black, Phillip Briddell, Heidi Hormel, Frank Countess, Shanna 

Terroso, Timothy Staub, Michael Pritchard 

 

1. Call to Order        Tom Englerth  

2. Comments or Questions from the Public 

3. Meeting Minutes – October 2025     Tom Englerth 

4. Financial Statements – September 2025     Tom Englerth 

5. Project Discussion       Kim Hogeman 

a. Demolition Grant Extension Discussion 

i. RSDC – 244-252 N George St (Cupids), York City 

ii. York Realty Partners – 450-570 W College (Dentsply), York City 

6. Creation of a Reserve Fund – Discussion    Tom Englerth 

7. LSA Grant Resolution        Kim Hogeman 

8. Policy Discussion       Kim Hogeman 

9. Good of the Order 

10. Next Meeting: December 18, 2025 

11. Adjournment        Tom Englerth 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/538759070


Prepared by: Marlena Schugt, BLOOM Program Manager  Page 1 of 3 

 

YORK COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY 

MEETING MINUTES 

October  16, 2025  
 
A meeting of the York County Land Bank Authority (“YCLBA”) was held on October 16, 2025, 
commencing at 3:30 p.m. The meeting was conducted using a hybrid model with an in-person 
and Zoom meeting option. Access for the public to hear the meeting was also available in-person 
and by telephone. Notice of the hybrid meeting, via Zoom link, and a telephone number were 
provided to the public in advance by notice required by law. 
 
The following Authority members were in attendance in the YCEA Board Room: 
 

Mr. Thomas Englerth II   Mr. Michael Black   
 Mr. Michael Pritchard    Ms. Heidi Hormel   
 Mr. Timothy Staub    Mr. Phillip Briddell 

 
The following Authority members were in attendance in via Zoom: 
 

Ms. Shanna Terroso 
    

Sarah Doyle, Legal Counsel, and the following members of the York County Economic Alliance 
were also in attendance: Mr. Brendan Salyards, Manager, Economic Initiatives & Analysis; and 
Ms. Marlena Schugt, BLOOM Program Manager. 
 
The following guests were also in attendance: Mr. Archie Palmore, Rev. Dr. Mark Kearse, Mr. 
Patrick Ball from the York County Agricultural Society, and Mr. Dylan Bauer from Royal Square 
Development & Construction (Zoom),  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Englerth called the meeting to order at 3:38 p.m., verified each Board member could 
hear and be heard by all others, and a quorum was present. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Members of the public were invited to submit comments in advance and were offered the 
opportunity to comment at this time. There was no comment from the public. 
 
CHAIR COMMENTS 
Chairman Englerth welcomed the Board and guests. 
 
MINUTES 
Chairman Englerth asked if there were any questions or comments on the minutes of the 
September Meeting Minutes, which were circulated prior to this meeting. On a motion by Mr. 
Michael Black, properly seconded by Mr. Phil Briddell, a vote was conducted by roll call, and the 
Board approved the September Meeting Minutes as presented. 
 
FINANCIALS 
The financial statements for August 2025 were distributed to the board prior to the meeting. 
Discussion ensued concerning cash flow and the rate at which revenue is coming in. On a motion 
by Mr. Briddell, properly seconded by Mr. Tim Staub, a vote was conducted by roll call, the Board 
approved the September Financial Statements as presented. 
 
 
 



Prepared by: Marlena Schugt, BLOOM Program Manager  Page 2 of 3 

 

PROJECT DISCUSSION  
Mr. Brendan Salyards shared YCLBA has $150,000 available to grant in the Fall Grant Round but 
has received over $300,000 in requests. A summary of projects was sent to board members to 
review in advance of this meeting. Mr. Salyards provided a summary of each of the projects, 
allowing time for the board members to ask questions from  the applicants present. Discussion 
ensued. Upon concluding his summary of the projects received Mr. Salyards shared the following 
recommendations for funding based on the review by staff:  

- RSDC – 1 S. George Street, York City, - $40,000 
- Terra Nova Capital, - 9 S. Main Street, Railroad - $30,000  
- RB Development – 462-462 W Market Street, York City - $50,000 
- Rev. Dr. Mark Kearse – 701-703 E. Prospect - $30,000 

 
i. RSDC – 1 S. George, York City 
Mr. Salyards summarized the project and demolition necessary to stabilize the structure and 
comfort station adjacent to the property. Mr. Dylan Bauer addressed questions from the board.   
 
On a motion made by Mr. Black, properly seconded by Mr. Michael Pritchard, the board 
unanimously approved awarding a grant of $40,000 for Royal Square Development 
Corporation (RSDC) to complete the proposed project at 1. S. George Street and directed 
staff to negotiate a demolition agreement with Royal Square Development Corporation.   

 
ii. Terra Nova – 9 S. Main, Railroad 
Mr. Salyards summarized the project and shared that the project includes demolition within a 
townhome in a row of townhomes that became significantly blighted under previous 
ownership.  
 
On a motion made by Ms. Heidi Hormel, properly seconded by Mr. Staub, the board 
unanimously approved awarding a grant of $35,000 for Terra Nova Capital, LLC to complete 
the proposed project at 9 S. Main, Railroad and directed staff to negotiate a demolition 
agreement with Terra Nova Capital, LLC.  

 
iii. York County Ag Society – 334 Carlisle Ave, York 
Mr. Salyards summarized the project and Mr. Pat Ball addressed questions from the board.   
 
On a motion made by Ms. Hormel, properly seconded by Ms. Shanna Terroso, the board 
unanimously approved, with an abstention from Mr. Briddell, tabling the project until the next 
funding meeting in April to further research and discuss if the property can be considered 
blighted.  

 
iv. RB Development - 462-464 W Market, York City 
Mr. Salyards summarized the project and shared that developers seek to remedy the severely 
blighted property and create housing for low-income seniors.  
 
Mr. Pritchard made a motion, properly seconded by Mr. Tim Staub, to approve a grant of 
$50,000 for RB Development to complete the proposed project at 462-464 West Market 
Street, York City and directed staff to negotiate a demolition agreement with RB Development. 
Discussion ensued.  
 
Mr. Pritchard amended the motion to approve a grant of $50,000 for RB Development to 
complete the proposed project at 462-464 West Market Street, York City and directed staff to 
negotiate a demolition agreement with RB Development with a 6-month timeline to utilize 
funding and contingent upon the project remains eligible for ARPA funding. This motion was 
properly seconded by Mr. Staub, with Chair Englerth, Mr. Pritchard, Mr. Staub, Ms. Hormel, 
Mr. Black, Ms. Terroso voting yes, and Mr. Briddell voting no. The motion carried.  



Prepared by: Marlena Schugt, BLOOM Program Manager  Page 3 of 3 

 

 
 

v. Mark Kearse - 701-703 E Prospect, York City 
Mr. Salyards summarized the project and shared that developers seek to create attainable 
housing units. Rev. Dr. Mark Kearse addressed questions from the board.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Pritchard, properly seconded by Ms. Hormel, the board unanimously 
approved awarding a grant of $30,000 for Rev. Dr. Mark Kearse to complete the proposed 
project at 701-703 E. Prospect Street, York City and directed staff to negotiate a demolition 
agreement with Rev. Dr. Mark Kearse.  

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Archie Palmore attended the meeting and will be joining YCLBA in the very near future.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to be brought before the Authority, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:08 p.m. 



Balance Sheet

As of 9/30/2025

YORK COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY (LBA)

Assets

Current Assets

$ 148,290.73103-000 CASH-YTB:GEN

$ 155.97104-000 CASH-YTB GRANT:GEN

$ 774,930.14105-000 CASH-YTB MONEY MKT:GEN

$ 75,060.00110-000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:GEN

$ 998,436.84Total Current Assets:

$ 998,436.84Total Assets:

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

$ 273.00200-000 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:GEN

$ 273.00Total Current Liabilities:

$ 273.00Total Liabilities:

Equity

$ 891,595.93320-000 Retained Earnings

$ 106,567.91320-000 Retained Earnings-Current Year

$ 998,163.84Total Equity:

Total Liabilities & Equity: $ 998,436.84

G/L Date:  10/15/2025

Run Date: 10/20/2025   5:20:55PM Page: 1



Income Statement

For The 9 Periods Ended 9/30/2025

YORK COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY (LBA)

Period to Date % of Revenue Year to Date % of Revenue

Revenue

401-000 BLIGHT DEMO FEE INCOME:GEN  97.63%  96.91%$ 283,920.00$ 47,835.00

402-000 OTHER FEE INCOME:GEN  0.41%  0.07%$ 200.00$ 200.00

430-000 INTEREST INCOME:GEN  1.96%  3.03%$ 8,866.45$ 958.98

Total Revenue:  100.00%  100.00%$ 292,986.45$ 48,993.98

Gross Profit:  100.00%  100.00%$ 292,986.45$ 48,993.98

Expenses

510-000 ADMIN-LEGAL:GEN  0.56%  1.64%$ 4,809.00$ 273.00

511-000 ADMIN - OTHER:GEN -0.02%  0.12%$ 359.54$-10.00

512-000 ADMIN-AUDIT:GEN  0.00%  2.13%$ 6,250.00$ 0.00

600-000 DEMOLITION EXPENSE:GEN  0.00%  59.73%$ 175,000.00$ 0.00

Total Expenses:  0.54%  63.63%$ 186,418.54$ 263.00

Net Income From Operations:  99.46%  36.37%$ 106,567.91$ 48,730.98

Earnings Before Income Tax:  99.46%  36.37%$ 106,567.91$ 48,730.98

Net Income (Loss):  99.46%  36.37%$ 106,567.91$ 48,730.98

G/L Date:  10/15/2025

Run Date: 10/20/2025   5:22:55PM Page: 1



Fee Income Contributions Interest All Unrestricted
2018 -                    -                          -                    -                               
2019 -                    -                          735.29            735.29                       
2020 4,012.50       -                          2,707.48       6,719.98                  
2021 1,796.10       1,000.00              832.50            3,628.60                  
2022 500.00            8,500.00              3,117.59       12,117.59                
2023 4,165.00       -                          10,995.38     15,160.38                
2024 -                    16,400.00           9,761.54       26,161.54                

Total - Prior Years 10,473.60$  25,900.00$        28,149.78$  64,523.38$             

25-Jan -                    -                          1,035.12       1,035.12                  
25-Feb -                    -                          936.91            936.91                       
25-Mar -                    -                          1,039.54       1,039.54                  
25-Apr -                    -                          997.36            997.36                       

25-May -                    -                          980.96            980.96                       
25-Jun -                    -                          949.07            949.07                       
25-Jul -                    -                          983.22            983.22                       

25-Aug -                    -                          985.29            985.29                       
25-Sep 200.00            -                          958.98            1,158.98                  
25-Oct -                               
25-Nov -                               
25-Dec -                               

Total Rec'd in 2025 200.00$         -$                       8,866.45$     9,066.45$                

Total 10,673.60$  25,900.00$        37,016.23$  73,589.83$             

Note:  No unrestricted funds have been expended as of 9/30/25.

YCLBA Unrestricted Income Tracking - Through 9/30/25



YORK COUNTY 

LAND BANK AUTHORITY  
 
 144 ROOSEVELT AVENUE · YORK, PA 17401 

 717.848.4000 

 FAX: 717.843.8837 

 WWW.YCEAPA.ORG 

 

 

RESOLUTION  

Be it RESOLVED, that the York County Land Bank Authority (YCLBA) hereby request a 

Statewide Local Share Assessment grant of $250,000 from the Commonwealth Financing 

Authority to be used for the creation of a data-driven comprehensive county-wide blight 

inventory. This would enable the YCLBA to identify strategic clusters of vacant, dilapidated, and 

abandoned properties, to swiftly engage with municipalities and properties that need immediate 

attention against the battle against blight 

Be it FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Applicant does hereby designates Nancy Barry, CFO and 

Silas Chamberlin, CSO as the official(s) to execute all documents and agreements between the 

YCLBA and the Commonwealth Financing Authority to facilitate and assist in obtaining the 

requested grant. 

Be it FURTHER RESOLVED, YCLBA designates Frank Countess, YCLBA Secretary, as the 

official to execute all documents and agreements between YCLBA and the Commonwealth 

Financing Authority to facilitate and assist in obtaining the requested LSA grant. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I affix my hand, this 20th day of November, 2025 

 

 

York County Land Bank Authority - Name of Applicant 

York County 

 

 

Tom Englerth, Chairman 


	YCLBA 9 2025 Financials.pdf
	GL_BalanceSheet1.pdf
	GL_FinancialReport2.pdf


